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The Community Assistance Visit 
(CAV)

The CAV evaluates a community’s 
floodplain management program 
and provides a means to render 
technical assistance to correct 
program deficiencies and 
violations. 



I’m here to see your

Floodplain permit files and

Elevation Certificates.

Compliance!

4 communities nationwide kicked out 
of NFIP.  Half are in Illinois!  We are 

serious!

100+ community 

visits per year.

15+ workshops per 

year.

5,000 technical 

assistance per year.

Illinois leads the 

nation in 

communities on 

probation or 

suspended from the 

National Flood 

Insurance Program.



What does “compliance” mean?

➢“……correcting program deficiencies and 
remedying violations to the maximum extent 
possible.”  

(44 C.F.R. §59.24(b)



Two types of compliance problems:

➢ “Program deficiency means a defect in a community’s 
floodplain management regulations or administrative procedures 
that impairs effective implementation of those […] regulations or 
[NFIP minimum] standards.”

➢ “Violation means the failure of a structure or other development 
to be fully compliant with the community’s floodplain 
management regulations.” 

(44 C.F.R. §59.1)



➢ Failure to require ANY permits;

➢ Failure to obtain state floodway permit;

➢ Failure to use proper flood elevation data;

➢ Non-compliant ordinance;

➢ New or substantially improved structures with low floors below BFE;

➢ HVAC or electric components not elevated;

➢ Failure to correct identified violations;

➢ Pattern & practice of issuing non-compliant variances;

➢ Allowing non-compliant lower enclosures or no vents;

➢ Fill and debris;

➢ Signing “reasonably safe” community acknowledgement with no data.

Examples of deficiencies and violations………

Community Assistance Visit 
Possible Violations



WHO’S TO BLAME?

The developer
The builder
The owner
The building official
The realtor
The prior 
administration

We Don’t Care

Regardless of who is at fault, the 
violation must be corrected.



The objective of land-use regulation is compliance, not 

punishment or retribution:

If full compliance is not possible, get what is REASONABLE and 

PRACTICAL, to limit flood damage exposure to people and 

property. Save your community’s good standing in the National 

Flood Insurance Program!

Community Assistance Visit (cont)



Remedying violations:

➢ “Remedy a violation means to bring 
a structure or other development into 
compliance with State or local 
floodplain management regulations, 
or if that is not possible, to reduce 
the impacts of noncompliance.”  

(44 C.F.R. §59.1)



If full compliance isn’t possible…

Corrective measures should be 

coordinated with state NFIP Coordinator 

and FEMA.



“…bring the structure or other development 
into compliance”

Unpermitted fill and 

grading in regulatory 

floodway restored to 

prior topography

Kristian 

inspecting the 

restoration



“reduce the impacts of noncompliance”

➢ Protect the structure from flood damage

➢ Implement enforcement procedures or otherwise deter 
future violations

➢ Reduce federal financial exposure with regard to the 
structure or other development



Protect the structure…

Structural bracing of noncompliant 

basement walls and elevation of 

mechanical, electrical, and plumbing 

equipment in basement:



Implement enforcement provisions…



Reduce federal (+state and local) financial 
exposure…

Section 1316 of the National 
Flood Insurance Act of 1968:  

No new or renewed NFIP flood 
insurance for a structure 
declared to be in violation of 
floodplain management 
regulations.

…If all else fails.



Ignoring problems and hoping they’ll go away?

➢ They say “ignorance is bliss.”

➢ Guess what else?  Ignorance is also ignorance.



Probation

➢ Formal notification to the community that FEMA regards 

the community’s floodplain management program as not 

compliant with the minimum standards of the NFIP.

➢ An additional $50 dollar premium will be charged on 

policies sold or renewed during the probation period.

➢ The minimum probation period is one year.



Hear ye, hear ye:



“Dear Flood Insurance Policyholder:…”

➢ “…a $50.00 probation 
surcharge will be added to the 
premium for each NFIP 
policy…”

➢ “to voice your concerns, please 
contact the community 
official, Mayor McCheese, by 
phone at 555-555-5555, or 
letter at 1234 Main St, 
Anytown, USA 99999”



Suspension

➢ A community is subject to suspension unless 

it corrects program deficiencies and remedies 

all violations by the compliance deadlines set 

during the probation period.



➢ No NFIP flood insurance anywhere in the community.

➢ No federal/state grants, loans, or indirect financial assistance (like 

mortgage insurance) for construction or acquisition of buildings in the 

SFHA.

➢ No federal flood disaster assistance for repair or replacement of 

buildings in the SFHA. 

Effects of Suspension or Non-
Participation in the NFIP



Nation Wide Probation (2)

Kirkland, IL 
1/16/16
14 policies
$2,172,600 coverage
$1,245.60 ave. premium

George County, MS
11/28/18
113 policies
$16, 430,600 coverage
$747.50 ave. premium



Nation Wide Withdrawn for Compliance (24)

Delta Jct., AK
Kodiak, AK
Adonia, AR
Baxter Co, AR
Gilmore, AR
Green Forest, AR
Lawrence County, IL
Naples, IL
Wheeler, IL
Shoals, IN
Alexander, KS
Simpson, KS

Porter, MI
Brookston, MN
Blue Mt., MS
Grass Range, MT
Northwood, ND
Stafford, ND
Marshall County, OK
Stuart, OK
Corsica, SD

Galax, VA
Barneveld, WI
Lyndon Station, WI



Nation Wide Suspension for Compliance (4)

Enforcement Suspension

Grand Tower, IL

Hamilton County, IL

Campton, KY

Chauncey, OH



Kirkland, Illinois

1st CAV 
August 
1987!



1996 Buyout
65 parcels  - $1.6 Million



Colonial Estates Subdivision

Bull Run Creek



Bull Run Creek, 
July 24, 1939

Village of Kirkland Flood Insurance 
Rate Map:  Effective August 4, 1987



Plat of Colonial Estates
approved by Village of Kirkland May 1994

FIRM date 
August 1987

Plat approved 
May 1994

Problem?



Regulations?  We don’t need any regulations!

➢ Subdivisions - 44 C.F.R. §60.3(b)(3):

⚫ “Require that all new subdivision 
proposals […] greater than 50 lots 
or 5 acres […] include […] base 
flood elevation data;”

➢ Elevation - 44 C.F.R. §60.3(b)(4):

⚫ “[…U]tilize […] data developed 
pursuant to paragraph (b)(3) of 
this section as criteria for 
requiring that new construction 
[have its lowest floor elevated].”

➢ Permits - 44 C.F.R. §60.3(a)(2):

⚫ “Review proposed 
development to ensure that all 
necessary permits have been 
received […as] required by 

Federal or State law”



State Permit?  Who needs permits?

➢ Rivers, Lakes, and Streams Act, 615 ILL. COMP. STAT. 5/23

⚫ “It shall be unlawful for any person, persons, corporations, counties, 
cities, municipalities, or other agency to make any fill, deposit, or 
encroachment in, deposit or placement of felled or trimmed woody 
plant upon or along the bank, or erect any bridges over a stream that 
has a drainage area of one square mile or more in urban areas or 10 
square miles or more in rural areas, until plans, profiles and 
specifications and other data which may be required, have been first 
filed with the Department of Natural Resources of this State, and a 
written permit received therefor.” (emphasis added)



How many things went wrong 
here?  Almost all of them.

Floodway Fill
New homes in zone 
A with basements 

below BFE



LOMAs granted in filled area (illegal fill)



Subdivision overlaid on pre-development topo

Creek ran UNDER 7th Street!



“Procedure for Map Correction”

➢ Also known as “Letter of Map Amendment”:  

Naturally high ground is inadvertently shown in the SFHA due 
to limitations of map scale or other factors of precision in 
measurement and symbolization

“These procedures shall not apply when there has been any 
alteration of topography since the effective date of the first 
NFIP map (i.e., FHBM or FIRM) showing the property within 
an area of special flood hazard.”  

(44 C.F.R. §70.1) (emphasis added)



Kirkland’s Long Path to Probation

• August 1987 – First CAV – new development identified
• June 1993 – Second CAV
• July 1994 – Third visit (+6 follow up letters)
• September 1995 – FEMA CAV (+6 follow up letters)
• 1996 - FEMA funded mitigation project 65 parcels $1.6 

million
• 1996 – 2008 – 19 State and FEMA contacts with village
• June 2008 – Fourth CAV
• 2008 – 2012 – 11 more contacts with village 
• March 2012 – Fifth CAV
• 2012 – 14 more letters and meetings
• January 2016 – PROBATION!
• 1/1/2020 deadline looming!



Years of frustration, but progress begins…

January 16, 2016: 

Kirkland placed on NFIP Probation

January 22, 2016:

Kirkland closes on purchase of 19 
vacant lots in Colonial Estates 
Subdivision from bank holding 
company that took over from 
developer



The Clock is Ticking…

January 15, 2016:

Kirkland engineering 
consultant applies for Illinois 
DNR floodway permit

August 1, 2017:

DNR Permit granted, expires 
12/31/2018, with one 
extension to 6/30/2019



“Reasonably safe” from flooding?

Ten post-FIRM buildings built 
in the unnumbered zone A 
special flood hazard area with 
basements between 5 and 6 
feet below adjacent finished 
grade.

Ensure they are reasonably 
safe or notify FEMA of fill and 
request the LOMAs be 
superseded.



More mopping up (literally)

Permeable sandy layer below 
the sandy clay fill led to higher 
seepage rates than acceptable 
with standard sump pumps.

Future work following creek 
project:  cajole homeowners to 
allow installation of the 
necessary larger (sometimes 
much larger) sump pumps.



Where are they now?

Borrowing money from IEPA 
revolving loan fund to pay for 
the creek project…

…with fingers crossed to get 
bids, award the contract, and 
get the work done in time.



Summing up

“Village President Ryan Block said homes were built [in the 
floodplain] when they shouldn’t have been from 1993 to 1998.  He 
said [IDNR] and [FEMA] repeatedly told village officials to stop 
building and selling houses in the high-risk floodplain.”

“Block said the tipping point for the village to finally return the 
wetlands to the area was the threat of IDNR and FEMA pulling the 
village’s flood insurance.”

DeKalb Daily Chronicle, January 17, 2019


